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Patrick Whitter

Principal Research Officer

Strategic Planning

London Borough of Sutton
24 Denmark Road

Carshalton

SURREY

SM5 2JG






20th December 2007

BY EMAIL ONLY

Dear Mr Whitter

SUTTON - DRAFT INTERIM PLANNING GUIDANCE: SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION
Thank you for consulting with the Home Builders Federation on Sutton’s Draft Interim Sustainable Design & Construction Interim Planning Guidance (IPG). As the new Regional Planner for London, please could you note my contact details at the end of this letter, and update your records accordingly. 
We are alarmed by the content of the draft interim IPG. We strongly believe that if adopted it will have a detrimental impact upon housing supply and affordability in Sutton. Since there is so much to object to in this document it makes little sense to go through line-by-line. Instead we will confine our comments to key issues.

General principle

As we have said many times before, and has been confirmed many times by the Government Offices, local authorities cannot alter adopted local plan policy (in this case Sutton’s UDP from 2003) through the use of an IPG. It would appear, however, that the council is attempting to do just this under the guise of the Further Alterations to the London Plan and in anticipation of the Supplement to PPS1 (since published) by placing significant new demands upon developers to deliver higher standards of sustainable design and construction which go much further than requirements under the Building Regulations and existing Government guidance. None of the adopted UDP policies listed in Appendix 2 of this document allow the Council to impose these standards on developers: they are concerned with ‘encouraging’ developers to comply where this is feasible.  
I should also remind you that paragraph 2.44 of PPS12 says that SPDs (and other informal documents such as this) should not be used to set out new policies which ought to be included in Development Plan Documents. Clearly, what has been set out in this IPG will have a serious material impact on development in the borough. It therefore needs to be pursued by Sutton through the Development Plan process to allow for full and proper consultation and independent examination.
What the new Supplement to PPS1 says

Although this IPG has been prepared in advance of the new Supplement to PPS1, paragraph 33 of the new Supplement (Planning and Climate Change) makes quite clear any local requirement for either decentralised energy or sustainable buildings must be set out in a Development Plan Document, not an SPD, let alone an IPG, to ensure that such policies are subject of proper independent scrutiny. 
Paragraph 33 also makes quite clear that the setting of ‘blanket’ targets at borough wide level, for both decentralised energy and the Code, is impermissible. Moreover, any local target set should have regard for site viability and the need to sustain housing construction. To quote from paragraph 33:

“in the case of housing development and when setting development area or site-specific expectations, (the local planning authority should) demonstrate that the proposed approach is consistent with securing the expected supply and pace of housing development shown in the housing trajectory required by PPS3, and does not inhibit the provision of affordable housing”
Code for Sustainable Homes
The HBF is a co-signatory to the Code and supports this as the most sensible vehicle which will allow the construction industry to gradually re-orientate its business operation (materials development, products and processes, etc) to respond to climate change. Nevertheless, the Code is still voluntary, and the Council cannot stipulate compliance at any level. Instead the Council should adopt a more flexible, and dare we say encouraging, stance, by working with developers to identify where and when ratings of the Code might be achievable. This would then reflect paragraph 33 of the Supplement to PPS1 which states that local authorities should have regard to “the overall costs of bringing sites to the market”.
Construction Materials and Waste

The guidance requires all major developments to utilise at least 10% of recycled construction waste. Since DEFRA has not yet done so, could Sutton define what materials constitute construction waste so that developers might be able to assess whether this is likely to be viable without harming housing delivery and quality? We look forward to your response. 
Clarity

Despite the claim on page 1, our verdict is that this document fails provide clarity for developers or the public. It is a confusing and tiresome compendium of existing instruments and policy which have been issued at national, regional and local level. It is opaque, difficult to follow and no attempt has been made help developers (or indeed the public) navigate this quagmire by providing a simplified synthesis of the various policies, standards and guidance or by separating out what Sutton’s priorities might be in terms of helping the delivery of much needed housing development. Instead the document seems intent upon obstructing development. 
We strongly recommend that a single set of standards is adopted to bring about the more environmentally and socially sensitive design and construction which is desired. It is our view that adopting the Code for Sustainable Homes would be the most effective vehicle for achieving this, since this has superseded the BREEM Environmental Assessment Scheme. We draw attention to paragraph 32 of the new Supplement to PPS1 which recommends that local planning authorities should:

“Specify the requirement (for sustainable buildings) in terms of achievement of nationally described building standards, for example in the case of housing by expecting identified housing proposals to be delivered at a specific level of the Code for Sustainable Homes.”

Developers could then be encouraged to achieve these benchmarks, although I emphasise once again, that compliance with any level of the Code is still not yet mandatory. Setting simple, achievable benchmarks, and encouraging developers to reach or exceed these standards, while also collaborating with them to help achieve this, is surely a more constructive way forward than throwing a pile of policy statements at developers in the hope that some might ‘stick’?
Conclusion
In the light of these objections, we feel that this document must be withdrawn. Such changes in policy must be pursued through the proper statutory channels: i.e. the Development Plan Process, so that these policies can be subjected to proper independent scrutiny. 
I look forward to your response to this representation in due course. 

Yours sincerely
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James Stevens

Regional Planner for London
Email: james.stevens@hbf.co.uk
Tel: 0207 960 1623

Home Builders Federation

1st Floor, Byron House, 7-9 St James’s Street, London, SW1A 1DW
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